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Responses to your questions are shown in italics.

1.  Question:  What is the formal proposal due date?  Has the Formal Request For Proposal been posted?

Answer:  The Final Request for Proposal (RFP) has not been issued yet.  The proposal due date will be provided when the Final RFP is posted.

2. Question:  The tentative STRAD schedule discussed during the Presolicitation Conference on May 11, 2004 estimated the Formal RFP to be released around May 27, with the Receipt of Proposals due approximately one month later.  Does a delay to the scheduled RFP release automatically push the Receipt of Proposals date back as well? In other words, is it possible that we will have less than a month to respond to the Formal RFP? 
Answer:   Although the Final RFP has not been released yet, we anticipate it will be posted in the very near future.  Proposals will be due thirty days after the Final FRP is posted.  

3. Question:  Will the contractor of the new contract be obligated to hire the incumbent employees?

Answer:  There is no requirement to hire incumbent employees.

4. Question:  The solicitation states that the contract to be awarded will be a small business set-aside.  Does this mean that the prime contractor must be a small business, or that some percentage of the funding must be allocated to small businesses?

Answer:  The prime contractor must be a small, domestic business with no more than 1,000 employees, per the size standard for this solicitation.  This solicitation includes the FAR clause 52.219-14 (b)(1), Limitation on Subcontracting, which states, “At least 50 percent of the cost of contract performance incurred for personnel shall be expended for employees of the concern.”  Thus the remainder of the contract could be performed by one or more qualified entities such as a large business or university.

5. Question:  Can a university take the lead as the prime contractor managing a consortium of small businesses as subcontractors on this program?

Answer:  See answer to 4 above.  Decisions on prime/sub teaming, consortium, etc. are not made nor recommended by the Government.
6. Question:  Can several small business companies and universities form a team to
submit one proposal for this solicitation?  If so, what are the documents you need from these companies and universities (such as partnership agreement, etc)?

Answer:  See answers to 4 and 5 above.  A subcontracting plan is not required for this solicitation, per FAR 52.219-9.  Sections in the Draft RFP addressing this topic include, Section L.10 (a) “Proposing Entity,”  L.11 (a)(2)(a)(iv) “Management of Subcontracts” and Section L.11 (b) “Past Performance Proposal” in regards to subcontracting information to be submitted.

7.  Question:  Can proposals be submitted electronically?  Is there a website for doing this?


Answer:   No.  Per Section L.10 of the Draft RFP, both printed and electronic copies of the proposal are required.  Because of the printed copy requirements, proposals cannot be submitted via the internet.

8.  Question:  How should the formal proposal be prepared?  We are aware that the preparation procedure of this proposal is different than other proposals we have done before.  Is the response to the sample task attached as an appendix or submitted as body of proposal?  How do we respond to the support areas, do we describe our capabilities to support those areas?  Could do you give us detailed information to prepare the formal proposal?  Is it possible to obtain a sample proposal similar to this proposal or the detailed format of this proposal?


Answer:  Section L of the Solicitation provides detailed information for proposal preparation and requirements.  Other than those stated, there are no requirements for how a proposal is presented.  The sample task response will submitted as a part of the Mission Suitability Proposal (Volume I).  Section L.9 states the overall page limitation for the proposal, which includes pages for the sample task response.  The offeror’s proposal should address all topics of Section L.11, Proposal Preparation- Specific Instructions.  Section M describes how the proposals will be evaluated.  Specifically, offerors are encouraged to carefully read the entire Solicitation and address all requirements included in Section L.  Because of confidentiality and proprietary issues, sample proposals are not available. 

9.  Question:   It appears that except for the incumbent, there is not just one company on the interested parties list with full capabilities to support all of the areas that are needed to support NASA space technologies research and development.  However, several companies and Universities can form a team to cover the full support areas to compete in this solicitation. Otherwise, the incumbent will be the only company that will submit the proposal as far as we know. In addition, the University has diversified experts to cover the full support area, and our education programs can benefit a lot from this program, like we have many faculty, scientists, Post-doc, graduate and undergradute students who can participate in this program. Therefore, can the final RFP qualify two more options as the prime: a) University 2) a union of several companies and Universities either combined by partnership agreement or registered as an entity (If so, which way NASA Ames prefers to?)

Answer:  In accordance with the FAR, the Contracting Officer must set aside any acquisition over $100,000 for small business participation when there is a reasonable expectation that offers will be obtained from at least two responsible small business concerns.  As stated in 4, 5, and 6 above, the solicitation does not preclude a small business acting as the prime, with a university or other small business acting in a subcontractor role.  In addition, the Government will not suggest or recommend how a teaming arrangement is decided.

10.  Question:  How to do the transition if we win this proposal?  Do we need to set up a transition working group that will present to NASA Ames? 


Answer:  There will be a 30-day Phase-In Period for the transition from the previous to new contract.  As stated in Section L, offerors are to develop and provide their Phase-In Plan.  During the Phase-In period, the successful offeror will establish operations at NASA Ames Research Center, since this is an on-site contract.
11.  Question:   Does the DRFP request a management group to set up on-site at NASA Ames or can this management group set up somewhere else?


Answer:   As stated in the Statement of Work, “Most of the work will be performed on-site at NASA Ames Research Center.”  It is not a requirement for the management group of the contractor to be on-site if they can perform the daily requirements and management duties of the contract from an off-site location.

End of Questions Set 2
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